
 

  wincoil.gov | Page 1  

 
REVISED  
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 

Thursday, January 9, 2025 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance……..…………………………........Board Member John Penney 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call .................................................................................................Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None  
B. Presentations – Introduction of Roy Garcia, Winnebago County Emergency Services Disaster 

Agency Coordinator 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None 

 
6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of November 26, 2024 minutes  
B. Layover of December 5 and 12, 2024 minutes 

 
7. Consent Agenda….…………………………………………….………………….…… Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments shall lay over until 

the second board meeting after they are first introduced) 
A. Administrative Hearing Officer, Compensation: $200 per hour 

1. Erik Jacobs (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois 
B. Winnebago County Treasurer, Annual Compensation: $97,222.32 

1.   Theresa Grennan, (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, to serve the remainder of a   
four-year term (Susan Goral) expiring December 2026 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 2  

C. Public Aid Committee, Compensation: $140 per meeting 
1. Bryan Flynn (New Appointment), Cherry Valley Township, Illinois 
2. Eric Stromberg (New Appointment), Shirland Township, Illinois 
3. Jasper St. Angel (New Appointment), Rockford Township, Illinois 
4. Gary Jury (New Appointment), Harlem Township, Illinois 

 
9. Reports of Standing Committees…………..………………………………..…..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
A. Finance Committee…………………………………………………….John Butitta, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Affixing Compensation and Other Benefits for the Clerk of the Circuit Court 
3. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Pending Litigation (Cedric J. Marks II v. Jason 

Rossi, et al.) 
 

B. Zoning Committee ....................................................... .Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Z-05-24 A Map Amendment to rezone 10+- Acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District to the A2, Agriculture-Related Business District for the property that is 
commonly known as 16562 W. Campbell Road, Pecatonica, IL 61063 in Durand 
Township, District 1 to be laid-over. 

2. Ordinance Granting Site Approval for a 2 MW Commercial Solar Energy Facility (aka a 
Solar Farm) on a 33.39 +- Acre Site commonly known as 5626 Tipple Road / 5303 
Dailette Road (PIN: 15-17-100-008), Rockford, Il 61102, in Rockford Township, District 
9 to be laid-over. 

3. Ordinance Granting Site Approval for a 4.5 MW Commercial Solar Energy Facility (aka 
a Solar Farm) on a 71.09 +- Acre Site commonly known as 2799 N. Springfield Avenue 
(PIN: 11-08-401-003), Rockford, Il 61101, in Rockford Township, District 5 to be laid-
over. 

4. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee ......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report  

 
D. Operations and Administrative Committee ........... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

G. Legislative and Lobbying Committee……………………….Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 3  

 
Appointments read in on December 12, 2024 
A. Twelve Mile Grove Cemetery Association, Annual Compensation: None 

1. Ronald Mitchell (Reappointment), Pecatonica, Illinois, to serve a six-year term, expiring 
December 2030 

2. Kent E. Peterson (Reappointment), Pecatonica, Illinois, to serve a six-year term, 
expiring December 2030 

 
11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ......................................................Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, January 23, 2025 



Awards,  
Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 



Approval of 
Minutes 





























CONSENT 
AGENDA 



All applying organizations have complied with the requirements of the Winnebago

LICENSE # OF
# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT

31240 1
NORTHERN IL RIFLE & 
PISTOL CLUB 01/06/25-04/07/25 $1,152.00

LICENSE # OF
# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT

LICENSE # OF
# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT

The Following Have Requested a Class D,E,& F Limited Annual License
LICENSE # OF

# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT

31241 1
AMERICAN LEGION POST 
#288 01/01/25-12/31/25 $5,000.00

31242 1

COLONEL THOMAS G. 
LAWLER VFW POST #342 
AUXILIARY 01/10/25-01/10/26 $4,000.00

Deputy Clerk Daisy Carrillo

Date

This concludes my report,

9-Jan-25LORI GUMMOW

The Following Have Requested a Class C, One Time Emergency License

Winnebago County Clerk

RAFFLE APPLICATION REPORT

Presently the County Clerk's office has  Raffle Applications submitted by
 3  different organization for 3  Raffles.

County Raffle Ordinance.  All fees have been collected, bonds received and all
individuals involved with the raffles have received the necessary Sheriff's

Department clearance.

The Following Have Requested A Class A, General License

The Following Have Requested a Class B, MULTIPLE (2, 3 OR 4) LICENSE







Appointments 





























 

1 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  

FOR WINNEBAGO COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING OFFICER 

This PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this ____ day of 

January, 2025, by and between the County of Winnebago, Illinois (“County”), a body politic and 

corporate, and Erik Jacobs (“Hearing Officer”). The County and Hearing Officer are collectively 

referred to herein as “Parties” or individually as a “Party”. 

RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the County seeks the services of an Administrative Hearing Officer 

pursuant to Chapter 4 (Administrative Code Enforcement Procedures) of the Winnebago County 

Code of Ordinances to preside over proceedings arising from code violation cases and render 

decisions regarding the same. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals and the mutual covenants 

hereinafter set forth, the Parties agree as follows: 

Section 1.  Recitals Incorporated.  The above recitals are incorporated herein as though 

fully set forth. 

Section 2. General Scope of Work and Duties.  

A. The scope of services to be performed by the Hearing Officer are outlined in Exhibit “A”, 

attached hereto and made a part hereof. This Agreement shall apply only to the Services 

set forth in the scope of services to be accomplished after the effective date, and prior to 

the termination, of this Agreement except as may be modified or expanded during the 

term of this Agreement by mutual written consent of both Parties.  

 

B. The Hearing Officer shall not perform the function of legal counsel for the County and 

any input provided by the Hearing Officer regarding processes or forms shall be advisory 

in nature and all County legal advice shall be provided by the Winnebago County State’s 

Attorney’s Office.  

 

C. The Hearing Officer shall immediately notify the County of any and all administrative 

adjudication, hearing officer or other similar type services contemplated to be provided 

by the Hearing Officer to other entities. The County shall determine in its’ discretion 

whether the provision of such services by the Hearing Officer interferes with the Hearing 

Officer’s duties to be provided pursuant to this Agreement and whether further action is 

appropriate, up to an including termination of this Agreement.  

 

D. The County may conduct a performance evaluation of the Hearing Officer prior to the 

end of the term as provided under Section 5 below 

 

 



 

2 
 

Section 3. Representations and Performance of Services.  

A. The Hearing Officer represents that he is currently, and will maintain updated licensure 

with the Illinois Attorney Registration and Disciplinary Commission, authorizing him to 

practice law in the State of Illinois, and is not currently subject to any censure, 

suspension or revocation of his license to practice law in the State of Illinois or any other 

jurisdiction.  

 

B. The Hearing Officer agrees that he will, at all times, faithfully, industriously, and to the 

best of his ability, experience, and talents perform all the duties that may be required of 

and from him pursuant to this Agreement. 

Section 4. County Duties. 

The County shall provide the Hearing Officer with: 

A. Copies of, or full access to, all relevant codes, ordinances, policies, rules and regulations 

regarding the administrative adjudication towing/impounds and code/ordinance 

violations; 

 

B. Reasonable access to all pertinent documents and records for use in rendering 

administrative adjudication decisions; and 

 

C. Appropriate facilities to conduct hearings, including stenographic services and 

administrative support to facilitate the efficient conduct of such hearings.  

Section 5. Term. This Agreement shall be for a one (1) year term to begin on January ___, 

2025 and ending on January ___, 2026, unless terminated earlier in accordance with this 

Agreement or extended by mutual agreement of the Parties.  

Section 6. Compensation and Payment of Invoices.  

A. Compensation. The Hearing Officer will be paid at a rate of no more than two hundred 

dollars ($200.00) per hour for the legal services he performs pursuant to this Agreement. 

Travel time and parking costs shall not be billed.  

 

B. Invoices.  

a. Invoices shall be issued each month by the Hearing Officer for the services 

rendered during the immediately preceding month, outlining in detail the services 

rendered and the time expended. 

 

b. Invoices shall be submitted to the Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office, 

Civil Bureau, 400 West State Street, Suite 804, Rockford, Illinois 61101. Invoices 

may be submitted by U.S. mail or by electronic mail, lvaughn@sao.wincoil.gov.  

 

mailto:lvaughn@sao.wincoil.gov


 

3 
 

c. All invoices shall be paid pursuant to the Local Government Prompt Payment 

Act, 50 ILCS 505/1 et seq.  

Section 7. Relationship of the Parties. 

A. Independent Contractor. The Hearing Officer is and shall remain for all purposes an 

independent contractor and shall not be deemed to be an agent or employee of the County 

for any purpose.  

 

B. No Fringe Benefits. As an independent contractor, the Hearing Officer shall have no right 

to any compensation from the County other than the Compensation as set forth in Section 

6 (A). In addition, the County shall have no obligation to provide the Hearing Officer 

with (a) industrial accident, worker’s compensation or unemployment insurance; (b) 

medical insurance or the payment of medical insurance premiums; (c) vacation, sick or 

holiday pay; (d) payment or withholding of social security or other taxes; or (e) any other 

benefits that are not, or may from time to time become, available to employees of the 

County. 

 

C. No Authority. The Hearing Officer possesses no authority to bind the County for any 

promise, obligation, agreement or representation unless specifically authorized by the 

County in writing. 

 

D. Liabilities. The Hearing Officer shall not contract or incur any liabilities on behalf the 

County, without specific written authorization from the County. 

 

E. Mutual Cooperation. The County agrees to cooperate with the Hearing Officer in the 

performance of the Services, including meeting with the Hearing Officer and providing 

the Hearing Officer with direction and such non-confidential information that the County 

may have that may be relevant and helpful to the Hearing Officer’s performance of the 

Services. The Hearing Officer agrees to cooperate with the County in the performance 

and completion of the Services and with any other individuals engaged by the County to 

perform in the role of Hearing Officer. 

Section 8.  Indemnification.  

A. To the fullest extent permitted by Illinois law, the Hearing Officer shall indemnify, 

defend and hold harmless the County, its officers, officials, agents, employees, and 

representatives from all claims, demands, lawsuits, actions, costs (including litigation 

expenses and attorneys’ fees) of any kind, caused by, resulting from, arising out of or 

occurring in connection with the Hearing Officer’s performance of the Services under 

this Agreement, but only to the extent caused by the negligent act, misconduct or 

omission of the Hearing Officer or anyone or entity directly or indirectly employed by the 

Hearing Officer for whose acts Hearing Officer may be liable. 

 



 

4 
 

B. To the fullest extent permitted by Illinois law, the County shall indemnify, defend and 

hold harmless the Hearing Officer from all claims, demands, lawsuits, actions, costs 

(including litigation expenses and attorneys’ fees) of any kind, caused by, resulting from, 

arising out of or occurring in connection with the County’s performance of the Services  

under this Agreement, but only to the extent caused by the negligent act, misconduct or 

omission of the County or anyone or entity directly or indirectly employed by the County 

for whose acts the County may be liable. 

Section 9. Termination.  

A. The County may terminate this Agreement at any time and for any reason prior to the 

expiration of the term of this Agreement by giving written notice to the Hearing Officer 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 11 below. 

 

B. The Hearing Officer may terminate this Agreement by giving thirty (30) days prior 

written notice to the County. 

 

C. This Agreement shall terminate immediately upon the occurrence of any of the following 

events: 

1. The Parties may terminate this Agreement upon mutual written agreement;  

2. The Hearing Officer’s inability to perform the services set forth herein for any 

reason, including without limitation, the death, mental incapacity or physical 

disability of the Hearing Officer; and 

3. The Hearing Officer’s failure or refusal to faithfully or diligently perform the 

services set forth herein or the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

D. If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Section 9, the Hearing Officer shall be 

compensated for all work completed up to the termination date of this Agreement as 

provided herein.  

Section 10. Assignment. This Agreement shall not be assigned or transferred by the Hearing 

Officer or the County without the prior written consent of the other Party. 

Section 11. Notices. Any noticed required to be given by this Agreement shall be deemed 

sufficient if made in writing and sent by first class United States mail, by certified mail, return 

receipt requested, by personal service, or by email to the persons and addresses indicated below 

or to such other addresses as either party hereto shall notify the other party of in writing pursuant 

to the provisions of this subsection: 

If to the County:     If to the Hearing Officer: 

County of Winnebago     Attorney Erik K. Jacobs 

c/o Joseph V. Chiarelli, Chairman   1716 Bradley Rd. 

404 Elm Street, Suite 533    Rockford, Illinois 61107 

Rockford, Illinois 61101    Email: Ejacobs2865@gmail.com  

         

mailto:Ejacobs2865@gmail.com


 

5 
 

With a copy to: 

 

Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office 

c/o Lafakeria S. Vaughn, Chief of Civil Bureau 

400 W. State Street, Suite 804 

Rockford, Illinois 61101 

Email: lvaughn@sao.wincoil.gov  

 

Section 12. Confidentiality. The Hearing Officer shall not reveal any confidential or 

sensitive information of the County provided to the Hearing Officer, including such information 

contained in any County records or documents, regarding procedures or operation of the County 

to any person, firm, corporation or other entity during and after the term of this Agreement 

without the express written consent of the County. 

Section 13. Work Product. All work produced pursuant to this Agreement shall be the 

property of the County and shall not otherwise be distributed without the County’s permission.  

Section 14. Headings and Titles. The headings and titles of any provisions of this Agreement 

are for convenience or reference only and are not to be considered in construing this Agreement. 

Section 15. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which 

shall be considered an original and together shall be one and the same Agreement. 

Section 16. Amendment. No amendment or modification to this Agreement shall be effective 

until it is reduced to writing and approved and executed by the County and the Hearing Officer 

in accordance with all applicable statutory procedures.  

Section 17. Severability. If any provision in this Agreement, or any section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause, phrase, word or the application thereof, in any circumstance, is held invalid, 

this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid part were never included herein and the 

remainder of this Agreement shall be and remain valid and enforceable to the fullest extent 

permitted by law. 

Section 18. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed 

according to the laws of the State of Illinois. Venue of any litigation shall be in the 17th Judicial 

Circuit of Winnebago County, Illinois. 

Section 19. Waiver. Neither the County nor the Hearing Officer shall be under any obligation 

to exercise any of the rights granted to them in this Agreement except as it shall determine to be 

in its best interests from time to time. The failure of the County or the Hearing Officer to 

exercise at any time any such rights shall not be deemed or construed as a waiver of that right, 

nor shall the failure void or affect the County’s or the Hearing Officer’s right to enforce such 

rights or any other rights.  

Section 20. Freedom of Information Act. Section 7(2) of the Illinois Freedom of Information 

Act (“FOIA”) (5 ILCS 140/7(2)) requires certain records that quality as “public records”, which 

have been prepared by and are in the possession of a party who has contracted with the County, 

mailto:lvaughn@sao.wincoil.gov


 

6 
 

be turned over to the County so that a FOIA requestor can inspect and photocopy the non-exempt 

portions of the public records pursuant to a FOIA request. The County has a very short period of 

time from receipt of a FOIA request to comply with the request, and it requires sufficient time to 

collect and review the records to decide what information is or is not exempt from disclosure. 

The Hearing Officer acknowledges the requirements of FOIA and agrees to comply with all 

requests made by the County for public records (as that term is defined by Section 2(c) of FOIA) 

in the undersigned’s possession and to provide the requested public records to the County within 

two (2) business days of the request being made by the County. The Hearing Officer agrees to 

indemnify and hold harmless the County from all claims, costs, penalties, losses and injuries 

(including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees, and other professional fees, court costs and/or 

arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to its failure to provide the 

public records to the County under this Agreement.  

Section 21. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth all the covenants, conditions and 

promises between the Parties, and it supersedes all prior negotiations, statements or agreements, 

either written or oral, with regard to its subject matter. There are no covenants, promises 

agreements, conditions or understandings between the Parties, either oral or written, other than 

those contained in this Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK- 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

7 
 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by 

their duly authorized officers on the dates written below.  

 

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS,         ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING OFFICER 

a body politic and corporate 

 

By: _______________________________         By: _________________________________ 

        Joseph V. Chiarelli                   Erik K. Jacobs 

        Chairman of the County Board of the        

        County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 

Date: ________________________, 2025.         Date: ___________________________, 2025. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________   

Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   

County Board of the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 

Date: _______________________, 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

8 
 

Exhibit A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Administrative Hearing Officer shall attend and preside over all proceedings arising from code and 

ordinance violations as described below. The hearings are typically held bi-weekly*: the 1st and 3rd Tuesday 

of each month on the 8th Floor of the Winnebago County Courthouse, 400 W. State Street, Rockford, Illinois 

61101. [*The schedule and location within the courthouse is subject to change, but the Hearing Officer will 

be notified as soon as possible.] 

 

The Administrative Hearing Officer shall have the duty, authority and jurisdiction to:  

a. Preside over administrative hearings concerning any County code and ordinance violations that 

pertains to or regulates any of the following:  

 

i. animal control {and cited animal code violations from certain municipalities within the 

County); 

ii. the definition, identification and abatement of public nuisances; 

iii. the accumulation, disposal, and transportation of garbage, refuse and other forms of solid 

waste;  

iv. the construction and maintenance of buildings and structures; 

v. sanitation practices;  

vi. zoning; or 

vii. towing/impoundment.  

 

b. Postpone or continue an alleged violator's hearing to a later hearing date; 

 

c. Accept or reject any agreed order, continuance, or other agreed disposition presented by the 

parties; 

 

d. Administer oaths and affirmations; 

 

e. At the request of any party or on the hearing officer’s own motion, issue subpoenas directing 

witnesses to appear and give relevant testimony at the hearing, or directing the production of 

relevant books, records, or other information, but only if the hearing officer determines the 

subpoenaed information is necessary to present relevant evidence that relates to a contested issue 

in the case; 

 

f. Hear testimony and accept evidence from the code enforcement officer, the respondent, and all 

interested parties relevant to the existence of a code violation; 

 

g. Preserve and authenticate the record of the hearing and all exhibits and evidence introduced at the 

hearing; 

 

h. Issue and sign written findings and a decision order stating whether a code violation exists;  

 

i. Impose penalties consistent with applicable code provisions and assess costs reasonably related to 

instituting the proceedings upon finding the respondent liable for the charged violation; and 

 

j. Any and all additional duties identified in Chapter 4 of the Winnebago County Code of 

Ordinances. 



Theresa
Grennan 
CONTACT 

2312 26th St 
Rockford, IL  61108 
tgrennan11@gmail.com 
Cell: 815-222-2378 

EDUCATION 

1982 
Graduate of Jefferson High 
School 

1990 
Banking Classes, Accounting 
Classes & Business Classes @ 
Rock Valley College 

SKILLS 

Professional 

● Investment
● Management
● Banking

REFERENCE 

Work Related: 
Susan Goral, Winnebago County 
Treasurer; 815-319-4406 

Steve Chapman, Forest Preserve 
Board; 815-997-7383 

Molly Terrinoni, Winnebago 
County Finance; 815-319-4061 

Personal: 
Regina Wells, friend of 40 years 
815-790-1591 

Theresa Luchini, friend of 25 years 
815-289-5154 

Tina Kirschman, friend of 20 years 
815-543-1174 

PROFILE 
I have been employed in the Winnebago County Treasurers Office for 30 years 
and holding the position Chief Deputy Treasurer for the past 16 years.  Prior to 
my employment with Winnebago County Treasurer, I was in banking holding 
various positions from head tellers to supervisor positions then leading to 
management responsibilities based on my job performances.  I am proud to say 
that I live and work in and for Winnebago County. 

WORK EXPERIENCE 

   Chief Deputy Treasurer | Winnebago County Treasurer 
2008 – Current 
Generate and mail property tax bills, supervise the collection of property tax 
payments.  Assist with the distribution of tax dollars to the taxing districts 
within Winnebago County. Responsible for investments of Winnebago County 
funds on a daily basis, month end and year end balancing. Internal account 
reconcilement, reviewing documents to ensure accuracy.  Running and calling 
the yearly tax lien sale. Yearly audit assistance.  Supervising 5 full time 
employees.  

  Administrative Assistant/Office Mgr. | Winnebago County Treasurer

2004 – 2008 
Assisting Chief Deputy and Treasurer with daily operations.  Investment 
reporting, forecasting duration of investments for the most profitable return of 
funds invested.  Yearly county wide publications. Yearly audit assistance. 
Monthly and daily balancing.  

   Sr Accountant | Winnebago County Treasurer 
1998 - 2004 
Yearly county wide publications. Investment reporting, forecasting duration of 
investments for the most profitable return of funds invested.  
Monthly balancing of over 25 accounts. Responsible for daily balancing of 
cashiering counters for property tax and mobile home payments.   

  Accountant | Winnebago County Treasurer 
1994 – 1998 
Keep accurate accounting records and monitor funds for investing. Balancing 
numerous accounts, funds and bank statements.  

   Various Positions | First of America Bank & Northwest Bank 
1986 -1994 
Calculate and organize all financial data and documents providing account 
analysis on major clients. Balancing and maintaining of ATM and vault.  
Training and scheduling of tellers. Ran and balanced commercial windows. 

mailto:tgrennan11@gmail.com


Illinois Public Aid Code re: Administrative Hearings 
 
(305 ILCS 5/11-8) (from Ch. 23, par. 11-8) 
     Sec. 11-8. Appeals - to whom taken. Applicants or recipients of aid may, at any time within 60 
days after the decision of the County Department or local governmental unit, as the case may be, 
appeal a decision denying or terminating aid, or granting aid in an amount which is deemed inadequate, 
or changing, cancelling, revoking or suspending grants as provided in Section 11-16, or determining to 
make a protective payment under the provisions of Sections 3-5a or 4-9, or a decision by an 
administrative review board to impose administrative safeguards as provided in Section 8A-8. An 
appeal shall also lie when an application is not acted upon within the time period after filing of the 
application as provided by rule of the Illinois Department. 
     If an appeal is not made, the action of the County Department or local governmental unit shall 
be final. 
     Appeals by applicants or recipients under Articles III, IV, or V shall be taken to the Illinois 
Department. 
     Appeals by applicants or recipients under Article VI shall be taken as follows: 

        (1) In counties under township organization (except such counties in which the 
governing authority is a Board of Commissioners) appeals shall be to a Public Aid 
Committee consisting of the Chairman of the County Board, and 4 members who 
are township supervisors of general assistance, appointed by the Chairman, with 
the advice and consent of the county board. 
        (2) In counties in excess of 3,000,000 population and under township organization 
in which the governing authority is a Board of Commissioners, appeals of persons from 
government units outside the corporate limits of a city, village or incorporated town of 
more than 500,000 population, and of persons from incorporated towns which have 
superseded civil townships in respect to aid under Article VI, shall be to the Cook 
County Townships Public Aid Committee consisting of 2 township supervisors and 3 
persons knowledgeable in the area of General Assistance and the regulations of the 
Illinois Department pertaining thereto and who are not officers, agents or employees of 
any township, except that township supervisors may serve as members of the Cook 
County Township Public Aid and Committee. The 5 member committee shall be 
appointed by the township supervisors. The first appointments shall be made with one 
person serving a one year term, 2 persons serving a 2 year term, and 2 persons serving a 
3 year term. Committee members shall thereafter serve 3 year terms. In any appeal 
involving a local governmental unit whose supervisor of general assistance is a member 
of the Committee, such supervisor shall not act as a member of the Committee for the 
purposes of such appeal, and the Committee shall select another township supervisor to 
serve as an alternate member for that appeal. The township whose action, inaction, or 
decision is being appealed shall bear the expenses related to the appeal as determined by 
the Cook County Townships Public Aid Committee. A township supervisor's 
compensation for general assistance or township related duties shall not be considered 
an expense related to the appeal except for expenses related to service on the 
Committee. 
        (3) In counties described in paragraph (2) appeals of persons from a city, village or 
incorporated town of more than 500,000 population shall be to the Illinois Department. 
        (4) In counties not under township organization, appeals shall be to the County 
Board of Commissioners which shall for this purpose be the Public Aid Committee of 
the County. 



     In counties designated in paragraph (1) the Chairman or President of the County Board 
shall appoint, with the advice and consent of the county board, one or more alternate members of 
the Public Aid Committee. All regular and alternate members shall be Supervisors of General 
Assistance. In any appeal involving a local governmental unit whose Supervisor of General Assistance 
is a member of the Committee, he shall be replaced for that appeal by an alternate member designated 
by the Chairman or President of the County Board, with the advice and consent of the county board. In 
these counties not more than 3 of the 5 regular appointees shall be members of the same political party 
unless the political composition of the Supervisors of the General Assistance precludes such a 
limitation. In these counties at least one member of the Public Aid Committee shall be a person 
knowledgeable in the area of general assistance and the regulations of the Illinois Department 
pertaining thereto. If no member of the Committee possesses such knowledge, the Illinois Department 
shall designate an employee of the Illinois Department having such knowledge to be present at the 
Committee hearings to advise the Committee. 
     In every county the County Board shall provide facilities for the conduct of hearings on 
appeals under Article VI. All expenses incident to such hearings shall be borne by the county 
except that in counties under township organization in which the governing authority is a Board of 
Commissioners (1) the salary and other expenses of the Commissioner of Appeals shall be paid from 
General Assistance funds available for administrative purposes, and (2) all expenses incident to such 
hearings shall be borne by the township and the per diem and traveling expenses of the township 
supervisors serving on the Public Aid Committee shall be fixed and paid by their respective townships. 
In all other counties the members of the Public Aid Committee shall receive the compensation and 
expenses provided by law for attendance at meetings of the County Board. 
     In appeals under Article VI involving a governmental unit receiving State funds, the Public 
Aid Committee and the Commissioner of Appeals shall be bound by the rules and regulations of the 
Illinois Department which are relevant to the issues on appeal, and shall file such reports concerning 
appeals as the Illinois Department requests. 
     The members of each Public Aid Committee and the members of the Cook County Townships 
Public Aid Committee are immune from personal liability in connection with their service on the 
committee to the same extent as an elected or appointed judge in this State is immune from personal 
liability in connection with the performance of his or her duties as judge. This immunity applies only to 
causes of action accruing on or after the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 94th General 
Assembly. 
     An appeal shall be without cost to the appellant and shall be made, at the option of the 
appellant, either upon forms provided and prescribed by the Illinois Department or, for appeals to a 
Public Aid Committee, upon forms prescribed by the County Board; or an appeal may be made by 
calling a toll-free number provided for that purpose by the Illinois Department and providing the 
necessary information. The Illinois Department may assist County Boards or a Commissioner of 
Appeals in the preparation of appeal forms, or upon request of a County Board or Commissioner of 
Appeals may furnish such forms. County Departments and local governmental units shall render 
all possible aid to persons desiring to make an appeal. The provisions of Sections 11-8.1 to 11-8.7, 
inclusive, shall apply to all such appeals. 
(Source: P.A. 93-295, eff. 7-22-03; 94-524, eff. 8-10-05.) 
 
 (305 ILCS 5/11-8.1) (from Ch. 23, par. 11-8.1) 
     Sec. 11-8.1. Appellants' rights. 
     (a) Upon receipt of an appeal the Illinois Department, Public Aid Committee, or Commissioner 
of Appeals, as the case may be, shall review the case. The appellant shall be entitled to appear in person 
and to be represented by counsel. He shall be afforded an opportunity to present all relevant matter in 



support of his claim for aid, or his objection to (a) termination of aid, or (b) the amount of aid, or (c) a 
determination to make a protective payment. 
     (b) Whenever any applicant appeals the denial of any application for assistance and the reason 
for denial is due to the failure of the applicant to comply with procedural requirements, including but 
not limited to, failure to keep an appointment, failure to produce acceptable proof of eligibility, or 
failure to request more time or assistance in obtaining acceptable proof of eligibility, the denial shall be 
rescinded if at any time before the decision on the appeal is made, the appellant complies with the 
procedural requirements that caused the denial and all other requirements necessary to process the 
application. When the denial is rescinded under this subsection, the Illinois Department shall grant or 
deny the application based upon all relevant substantive eligibility factors and issue a new decision. If 
the application is approved, cash assistance shall begin effective 30 calendar days after the original 
application date and the starting date of all other assistance shall begin based on the original application 
date. 
(Source: P.A. 87-630.) 
 
    (305 ILCS 5/11-8.2) (from Ch. 23, par. 11-8.2) 
     Sec. 11-8.2. Venue; depositions. 
     The appeal shall be heard in the county where the appellant resides. However, if the appellant is 
outside the State, the Illinois Department, Public Aid Committee, or Commissioner of Appeals, as the 
case may be, may take depositions from him and his witnesses or permit the appellant to present all 
relevant matter in support of his claim through witnesses acting in his behalf, or both by deposition or 
by testimony of witnesses, depending upon the circumstances in each case. 
     Hearings under this Section and Section 11-8.1 may be conducted with some or all of the 
parties, including the hearing officer, at different locations connected with each other by telephone. 
(Source: P.A. 87-860.) 
 
    (305 ILCS 5/11-8.3) (from Ch. 23, par. 11-8.3) 
     Sec. 11-8.3. Hearing officers - Subpoenas. Any qualified officer or employee of the Illinois 
Department, a County Board, or member of the staff of a Commissioner of Appeals, as the case may 
be, designated in writing to so act by the Director of the Department, Chairman or President of the 
County Board, or Commissioner of Appeals, may conduct hearings on appeals and may compel, by 
subpoena, the attendance and testimony of witnesses and the production of books and papers, and 
administer oaths to witnesses. Wherever feasible, the Public Aid Committee shall itself conduct 
hearings on appeals by applicants for or recipients of aid under Article VI. No person shall be 
compelled to attend a hearing at a place outside the county in which he resides. Subpoenas may be 
served as provided for in civil actions. The fees of witnesses for attendance and travel shall be the same 
as the fees of witnesses before the circuit court and shall be paid as an expense of administration of the 
County Department or the local governmental unit, as the case may be. 
     If a witness refuses to attend or testify, or to produce books or papers, concerning any matter 
upon which he might be lawfully examined, the circuit court of the county wherein the hearing is held, 
upon application of the Illinois Department, Public Aid Committee, or Commissioner of Appeals, as the 
case may be, may compel obedience by proceedings as for contempt as in case of a like refusal to obey 
a similar order of the court. 
(Source: P.A. 81-1085.) 
 
    (305 ILCS 5/11-8.4) (from Ch. 23, par. 11-8.4) 
     Sec. 11-8.4. Hearings not bound by technical rules of evidence or procedure. 
     The Illinois Department, Public Aid Committees and Commissioner of Appeals shall not be 
bound by common law or statutory rules of evidence, or by technical or formal rules of procedure, but 



shall conduct their hearings in such manner as seems best calculated to conform to substantial justice 
and the spirit of this Code. They may make such additional investigation as they may deem necessary, 
and shall make such decision as to the granting of aid and the amounts thereof as in their opinion is 
justified and in conformity with this Code. 
(Source: Laws 1967, p. 2302.) 
 
    (305 ILCS 5/11-8.5) (from Ch. 23, par. 11-8.5) 
     Sec. 11-8.5. (Repealed). 
(Source: Laws 1967, p. 122. Repealed by P.A. 92-111, eff. 1-1-02.) 
 
    (305 ILCS 5/11-8.6) (from Ch. 23, par. 11-8.6) 
     Sec. 11-8.6. Decision - time and effect. A decision on appeal shall be given to the interested 
parties within 90 days from the date of the filing of the appeal, unless additional time is required for a 
proper disposition of the appeal. All decisions on appeals shall be binding upon and complied with by 
the County Departments and local governmental units. 
(Source: P.A. 90-17, eff. 7-1-97.) 
 
(305 ILCS 5/11-8.7) (from Ch. 23, par. 11-8.7) 
     Sec. 11-8.7. Judicial review. The provisions of the Administrative Review Law, as amended, 
and the rules adopted pursuant thereto, shall apply to and govern all proceedings for the judicial review 
of final administrative decisions of the Illinois Department on appeals by applicants or recipients under 
Articles III, IV, or V. The term "administrative decision" is defined as in Section 3-101 of the Code of 
Civil Procedure. 
(Source: P.A. 92-111, eff. 1-1-02.) 
 
    (305 ILCS 5/11-9) (from Ch. 23, par. 11-9) 
     Sec. 11-9. Protection of records; exceptions. For the protection of applicants and recipients, 
the Illinois Department, the county departments and local governmental units and their respective 
officers and employees are prohibited, except as hereinafter provided, from disclosing the contents of 
any records, files, papers and communications, except for purposes directly connected with the 
administration of public aid under this Code. 
     In any judicial proceeding, except a proceeding directly concerned with the administration of 
programs provided for in this Code, such records, files, papers and communications, and their contents 
shall be deemed privileged communications and shall be disclosed only upon the order of the court, 
where the court finds such to be necessary in the interest of justice. 
     The Illinois Department shall establish and enforce reasonable rules and regulations governing 
the custody, use and preservation of the records, papers, files, and communications of the Illinois 
Department, the county departments and local governmental units receiving State or Federal funds or 
aid. The governing body of other local governmental units shall in like manner establish and enforce 
rules and regulations governing the same matters. 
     The contents of case files pertaining to recipients under Articles IV, V, and VI shall be made 
available without subpoena or formal notice to the officers of any court, to all law enforcement 
agencies, and to such other persons or agencies as from time to time may be authorized by any court. In 
particular, the contents of those case files shall be made available upon request to a law enforcement 
agency for the purpose of determining the current address of a recipient with respect to whom an arrest 
warrant is outstanding, and the current address of a recipient who was a victim of a felony or a witness 
to a felony shall be made available upon request to a State's Attorney of this State or a State's Attorney's 
investigator. Information shall also be disclosed to the Illinois State Scholarship Commission pursuant 



to an investigation or audit by the Illinois State Scholarship Commission of a delinquent student loan or 
monetary award. 
     This Section does not prevent the Illinois Department and local governmental units from 
reporting to appropriate law enforcement officials the desertion or abandonment by a parent of a child, 
as a result of which financial aid has been necessitated under Articles IV, V, or VI, or reporting to 
appropriate law enforcement officials instances in which a mother under age 18 has a child out of 
wedlock and is an applicant for or recipient of aid under any Article of this Code. The Illinois 
Department may provide by rule for the county departments and local governmental units to initiate 
proceedings under the Juvenile Court Act of 1987 to have children declared to be neglected when they 
deem such action necessary to protect the children from immoral influences present in their home or 
surroundings. 
     This Section does not preclude the full exercise of the powers of the Board of Public Aid 
Commissioners to inspect records and documents, as provided for all advisory boards pursuant to 
Section 5-505 of the Departments of State Government Law (20 ILCS 5/5-505). 
     This Section does not preclude exchanges of information among the Department of Healthcare 
and Family Services (formerly Illinois Department of Public Aid), the Department of Human Services 
(as successor to the Department of Public Aid), and the Illinois Department of Revenue for the purpose 
of verifying sources and amounts of income and for other purposes directly connected with the 
administration of this Code and of the Illinois Income Tax Act. 
     The provisions of this Section and of Section 11-11 as they apply to applicants and recipients of 
public aid under Article V shall be operative only to the extent that they do not conflict with any 
Federal law or regulation governing Federal grants to this State for such programs. 
     The Department of Healthcare and Family Services and the Department of Human Services (as 
successor to the Illinois Department of Public Aid) shall enter into an inter-agency agreement with the 
Department of Children and Family Services to establish a procedure by which employees of the 
Department of Children and Family Services may have immediate access to records, files, papers, and 
communications (except medical, alcohol or drug assessment or treatment, mental health, or any other 
medical records) of the Illinois Department, county departments, and local governmental units 
receiving State or federal funds or aid, if the Department of Children and Family Services determines 
the information is necessary to perform its duties under the Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act, 
the Child Care Act of 1969, and the Children and Family Services Act. 
(Source: P.A. 100-201, eff. 8-18-17.) 
 
    (305 ILCS 5/11-10) (from Ch. 23, par. 11-10) 
     Sec. 11-10. Names furnished other agencies. Whenever, under provisions of law, names and 
addresses of recipients of public aid are furnished to or held by any other agency or department of 
government, the agency or department of government shall adopt regulations necessary to prevent the 
publication of lists thereof or their use for purposes not directly connected with the administration of 
this Code, except that lists of that information shall be made available upon request to a law 
enforcement agency for the purpose of determining the current address of a recipient with respect to 
whom an arrest warrant is outstanding as provided in Section 11-9. 
(Source: P.A. 89-583, eff. 1-1-97.) 
 
    (305 ILCS 5/11-12) (from Ch. 23, par. 11-12) 
     Sec. 11-12. Penalty for publication, use for political or commercial purposes. 
     It is unlawful to use or publish any names or list of names of recipients secured from records 
maintained in the offices of the county departments or local governmental units except in conformity 
with regulations adopted by the Illinois Department. 



     It is unlawful, for commercial or political purposes of any nature, for any person, body, 
association, firm, corporation, or other agency to solicit, receive, make use of, or to authorize, 
knowingly permit, participate in or acquiesce in the use of, any lists of names of, or any information 
concerning, persons applying for or receiving public aid, directly or indirectly derived from the records, 
papers, files, or communications of the Illinois Department, the county departments, or local 
governmental units, or acquired in the course of performance of official duties. A violation of this 
Section shall constitute a Class B misdemeanor. 
(Source: P.A. 77-2344.) 



Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 



FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



SPONSORED BY: JOHN BUTITTA 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

SUBMITTED BY: FINANCE COMMITTEE 

2025 CR 

RESOLUTION AFFIXING COMPENSATION AND OTHER BENEFITS 
FOR THE CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

WHEREAS, the Clerk of the Circuit Court is an Elected Office Holder who is an Officer of the 
State Judiciary; and 

WHEREAS, unlike other elective offices, the Clerk of the Circuit Court may have his or her 
salary or other benefits increased or decreased during his term; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, that the following schedule of salaries is hereby adopted: 
Clerk of the Circuit Court 
December 1, 2024 – November 30, 2025 $105,727 plus a COLA*, stipend of $6,500** 
December 1, 2025 – November 30, 2026 The salary above plus a COLA*, stipend of $6,500** 
December 1, 2026 – November 30, 2027 The salary above plus a COLA*, stipend of $6,500** 
December 1, 2027 – November 30, 2028 The salary above plus a COLA*, stipend of $6,500** 

* The cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) shall be based on the most current All Urban Consumers (CPI-U)
available on November 1st for the year being adjusted published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics,
not to exceed 4%.

** The annual stipend shall be in addition to, but separate and apart from the salary and shall be 
appropriated each year by the Illinois General Assembly to the Supreme Court, which shall distribute such 
stipend in an annual lump sum payment to the Clerk of the Circuit Court. [705 ILCS 105/27.3].    

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Circuit Court shall be eligible for any 
Health Plan and shall pay the same cost for individual, dependent and retiree health insurance coverage 
as County employees covered under AFSCME Local 473 Collective Bargaining Unit retroactive to 
December 1, 2024. 



                BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Circuit Clerk. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption and the compensation amount shall take effect retroactive to December 
1, 2024. 

         Respectfully submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
 AGREE   DISAGREE 

 JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN   JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN   JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

 PAUL ARENA    PAUL ARENA 

 JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

 KEITH MCDONALD   KEITH MCDONALD 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY   JOHN F. SWEENEY 

 CHRISTINA VALDEZ    CHRISTINA VALDEZ  



 The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
Winnebago, Illinois, this ______day of  ______________________, 2025. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

2025 CR _______ 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE 

SPONSORED BY:  JOHN BUTITTA 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF PENDING LITIGATION 
(Cedric J. Marks II v. Jason Rossi, et al.) 

WHEREAS, Cedric J. Marks II v. Jason Rossi, et al., is a pending civil action against 
Winnebago County Sheriff Deputy Defendants, filed in the United States District Court for the 
Northern District of Illinois, as case number 3:21-cv-50349; and 

WHEREAS, the Plaintiff therein has agreed to settle all claims he has against the 
Defendants, for the sum of Two Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($225,000.00); and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee, after having reviewed the facts and circumstances 
of the aforementioned case and after having conferred with the Winnebago County State’s 
Attorney, through his assistant state’s attorney, has determined it is in the best interests of the 
citizens of Winnebago County to settle this case on the terms set forth above.   

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the Winnebago County State’s Attorney is hereby authorized to settle the 
aforementioned lawsuit by paying the Plaintiff therein the sum of Two Hundred Twenty-Five 
Thousand Dollars ($225,000.00). 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Winnebago County Treasurer, Winnebago 
County Clerk, and Winnebago County Finance Department are authorized and directed to 
prepare and deliver to the Winnebago County State’s Attorney one or more County Warrants 
totaling Two Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($225,000.00); payable as directed by the 
State’s Attorney.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption.  

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 



AGREE  DISAGREE 

JJOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

 JJOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN  JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  PAUL ARENA 
 

                      PAUL ARENA 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

   JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
 

    CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2025. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 



ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
ZONING COMMITTEE 

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
January 9, 2025 

Zoning Committee……….………….......………..……….....…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

  PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

TO BE LAID OVER:

1. Z-05-24 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE 10+- ACRES FROM THE AG,
AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT TO THE A2, AGRICULTURE-RELATED
BUSINESS DISTRICT requested by Dustin Barlett on behalf of River Bend Seed, LLC,
Applicant, represented by Amy Silvestri, Attorney, for the property that is commonly known as
16562 W. Campbell Road, Pecatonica, IL 61063 in Durand Township.
PIN:  Part of  PIN: 05-32-200-009     C.B. District:     1
Lesa Rating: NA             Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: YES
ZBA RECOMMENDATION:  APPROVAL (7-0)
ZC RECOMMENDATION:  APPROVAL (6-0)

2. ORDINANCE GRANTING SITE APPROVAL FOR A 2 MW COMMERCIAL SOLAR
ENERGY FACILITY (AKA A SOLAR FARM) ON A 33.39 +- ACRE SITE COMMONLY
KNOWN AS 5626 TIPPLE ROAD / 5303 DAILETTE ROAD (PIN: 15-17-100-008),
ROCKFORD, IL 61102, IN ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP, District 9, requested by Fox Sparrow
Solar, LLC (an indirect subsidiary of Trajectory Energy Partners, LLC), Lessee, represented by
James Rodriguez, Attorney and Mack Gapinski, Project Manager.
ZBA RECOMMENDATION:  DENIAL (3-4)
ZC RECOMMENDATION:  DENIAL (0-6)

3. ORDINANCE GRANTING SITE APPROVAL FOR A 4.5 MW COMMERCIAL SOLAR
ENERGY FACILITY (AKA A SOLAR FARM) ON A 71.09 +- ACRE SITE COMMONLY
KNOWN AS 2799 N. SPRINGFIELD AVENUE (PIN: 11-08-401-003), ROCKFORD, IL
61101, IN ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP, District 5, requested by North Springfield Solar, LLC (an
indirect subsidiary of Nexamp, Inc.), Lessee, represented by Jim Griffin, Attorney and Jack
Curry, Project/Development Manager.
ZBA RECOMMENDATION:  DENIAL (0-7)
ZC RECOMMENDATION:  DENIAL (0-6)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

4. COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not
intended as an official public notice):

• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA)
meeting is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, February 12, 2025, at 5:30 p.m. in
Room 303 of the County Administration Building.

• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is
tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, February 26, 2025, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the
County Administration Building.











































UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



NEW BUSINESS 



ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  Clerk.wincoil.gov
Phone: (815) 319-4250 | Fax: (815) 969-0259 

Announcements & Communications 
Date: January 9, 2025 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 

County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 

Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory
Commission the following:

a. Byron Station Unit 2-Request for Information for an NRC Post-Approval Site
Inspection for License Renewal Inspection Report 05000455/2025011

b. Certificate of Compliance No. 9316, Revision No. 13, for the Model NOS. AOS-25A,
AOS-50A, AOS-100B, and AOS-100A-S Packages

c. Federal Register/Vol. 89, No. 246/Monday, December 23, 2024/Notices

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago
County Treasurer the following:

a. Collateralization Report – as of November 30, 2024
b. Investment Report - as of December 1, 2024
c. Winnebago County Treasurer Bank Balances –November, 2024

3. County Clerk Gummow received from Charter Communications Quarterly Franchise
Fee Payments for the following:

a. Town of Rockton, IL
b. Harlem, IL, Township of Winnebago County

http://www.wincoil.us/
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  Clerk.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319-4250 | Fax: (815) 969-0259  

 

c. Town of Roscoe, IL 
 

4. County Clerk Gummow received from the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency a 
Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Waste (LPC-PA16) Description of Project: 
Permanent closure of previous facility at 3333 Kishwaukee Street, Rockford, IL. A 
permit is pending for a new facility to be operated at 3315 Kishwaukee Street, 
Rockford, IL.  

http://www.wincoil.us/


 

Adjournment 


	Revised Board Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Administrative Hearing Officer, Erik Jacobs
	Winnebago County Treasurer, Theresa Grennan
	Public Aid Committee, Bryan Flynn, Eric Stromberg, Jasper St. Angel, Gary Jury
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution Affixing Compensation & other Benefits for the Clerk of the Circuit Court
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Pending Litigation (Cedric J. Marks II v. Jason Rossi, et al.)
	Zoning Committee
	Ordinance Granting Site Approval for a 2 MW Commercial Solar Energy Facility (aka a Solar Farm) on a 33.39 + - Acre Site
	Ordinance Granting Site Approval for a 4.5 MW Commercial Solar Energy Facility (aka a Solar Farm) on a 71.09 + - Acre Site
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



